Public Document Pack

Cheshire E@,

Council%

Children and Families Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

Agenda

Date: Monday, 24th September, 2018
Time: 1.30 pm
Venue: Committee Suite 1,2 & 3, Westfields, Middlewich Road,

Sandbach CW11 1HZ

The agenda is divided into 2 parts. Part 1 is taken in the presence of the public and press.
Part 2 items will be considered in the absence of the public and press for the reasons
indicated on the agenda and in the report.

It should be noted that Part 1 items of Cheshire East Council decision making and
Overview and Scrutiny meetings are audio recorded and the recordings will be uploaded to
the Council’s website

PART 1 — MATTERS TO BE CONSIDERED WITH THE PUBLIC AND PRESS PRESENT

1. Apologies for Absence

2. Minutes of Previous meeting (Pages 5 - 10)

To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 16 July 2018

3. Declarations of Interest

To provide an opportunity for Members and Officers to declare any disclosable pecuniary and
non-pecuniary interests in any item on the agenda.

4. Whipping Declarations

For requests for further information

Contact Katie Small

Tel: 01270 686465

E-Mail: katie.small@cheshireeast.gov.uk with any apologies



mailto:katie.small@cheshireeast.gov.uk

10.

To provide an opportunity for Members to declare the existence of a party whip in relation to
any item on the agenda
Public Speaking/Open Session

A total period of 15 minutes is allocated for members of the public to make a statement(s) on
any matter that falls within the remit of the Committee.

Individual members of the public may speak for up to 5 minutes, but the Chairman will decide
how the period of time allocated for public speaking will be apportioned, where there are a
number of speakers.

Note: In order for officers to undertake any background research, it would be helpful if
members of the public contacted the Scrutiny officer listed at the foot of the agenda, at least
one working day before the meeting to provide brief details of the matter to be covered.

Update on CAMHs (Pages 11 - 20)

To receive an update by Dr Matthew Howard - CAMHS CD South & East Cheshire and Rob
Lupton -Team lead for Emotionally Healthy Schools

Corporate Parenting Annual Report 2017 - 2018 (Pages 21 - 44)

To give consideration to the Annual Report

Forward Plan (Pages 45 - 56)

To give consideration to the areas of the forward plan which fall within the remit of the
Committee.

Work Programme (Pages 57 - 66)

To give consideration to the work programme

Exclusion of the Press and Public



11.

12.

13.

14.

The reports relating to the remaining items on the agenda have been withheld from public
circulation and deposit pursuant to Section 100(B)(2) of the Local Government Act 1972 on
the grounds that the matters may be determined with the press and public excluded.

The Committee may decide that the press and public be excluded from the meeting during
consideration of the following items pursuant to Section 100(A)4 of the Local Government Act
1972 on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined
in Paragraphs 2 and 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972 and
public interest would not be served in publishing the information.

PART 2 - MATTERS TO BE CONSIDERED WITHOUT THE PUBLIC AND PRESS
PRESENT

Serious Case Review Update

To receive a presentation

Impact of the Regional Adoption Agency (Pages 67 - 74)

To give consideration to the report

Cheshire East Adoption Panel Chair Report (Pages 75 - 90)

To give consideration to the report.

Cheshire East Annual Adoption Service Report 2017/18 (Pages 91 - 118)

To give consideration to the report



This page is intentionally left blank



Public Dodfent Pack Agenda Item 2

CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL

Minutes of a meeting of the Children and Families Overview and Scrutiny
Committee
held on Monday, 16th July, 2018 at Committee Suite 1,2 & 3, Westfields,
Middlewich Road, Sandbach CW11 1HZ

PRESENT

Councillor Rhoda Bailey (Chairman)
Councillor A Moran (Vice-Chairman)

Councillors M Beanland, M Deakin, D Flude, M Grant, O Hunter, L Jeuda,
G Merry and M J Weatherill

In Attendance

Councillor J Saunders - Portfolio Holder

M Bayley - Head of Service: Infrastructure and Outcomes

| Donegani - Head of Service: SEND

M Palethorpe - Acting Executive Director of People

L Seal - Senior Communications Officer

J Simms - Head of Service —Children in Need and Children Protection
J Vitti - South Cheshire Clinical Commissioning Group

C Williamson - Head of Service Education Participation and Pupil

65 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor L Durham.

66 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

Consideration was given to the minutes of the meeting held on 10 May 2018.
RESOLVED

That the minutes of the meeting be approved as a correct record and signed by
the Chairman.

67 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest.

68 WHIPPING DECLARATIONS
There were no whipping declarations.

69 PUBLIC SPEAKING/OPEN SESSION

There were no members of public present.



Page 6

70 WRITTEN STATEMENT OF ACTION FOR SPECIAL EDUCATIONAL

71

72

NEEDS AND/OR DISABILITIES (SEND)

Consideration to the draft written statement of Action for Special Educational
Needs and/or Disabilities (SEND), prior to it being considered by the Health and
Well Being Board.

A comment was made in respect of partners operating in different ways and that
it was important to ensure the smooth operation of a ‘seamless service'.
Clarification was also sought in terms of ensuring all relevant legislation to autism
had been accepted and was part of the Council’s processes.

Further questions were raised regarding recruitment of Education Psychologists,
private  education  psychology assessments, number of children
temporary/permanently excluded from school whilst waiting for an assessment
and the numbers of children not in school and how this was assessed.

RESOLVED

That the statement be noted.
SEND REFORMS TASK AND FINISH GROUP - FINAL REPORT

Consideration was given to the SEND Reforms Task and Finish Groups report on
its findings, conclusions and recommendations.

The Acting Executive Director of People offered his thanks to Officers and those
Members on the Group for all their hard work over the past few months.

One of the recommendations put forward by the Task and Finish Group was for
the Committee to include on its work programme a review of SEND for 16-25
year olds. There were concerns that more work in this area needed to be
undertaken. It was agreed that this would be included as item on the work
programme.

It was also suggested that more work should be undertaken by the Committee on
personal budgets.

The Chairman also gave her thanks to the Members on the Task and Finish
Group in particular to Councillor D Flude who had chaired the Group.

RESOLVED

That the report be noted and that a review of SEND for 16-25 year olds would be
included on the work programme.

FACT22 - IMPACT PROGRESS REPORT

Consideration was given to a report summarising the impact and progress of
FACT22.

Members were informed that a future report outlining how the changes were
working would be brought back to the Committee for consideration.



73

74

Page 7

RESOLVED
(1) That the report be noted.

(2) That a future item regarding its progress be included on the work programme.
2017-18 ANNUAL REPORT OF MEMBER FRONTLINE VISITS

Consideration was given to a report on the themes and issues raised through
Member frontline visits to the Child in Need and Child Protection Teams.

Members queried the effectiveness of the Elected Member frontline Safeguarding
team visits form whether or not the Members could form an accurate view of the
team from only one visit and what happened to the feedback provided by
Members.

It was also felt interviews with Managers didn’t always reflect what frontline
practitioners were saying.

It was suggested that the form should be amended to include a box for Members
to have the ability to make further comments.

RESOLVED
(1) That the report be noted.

(2) That the proposed revised process and documentation for future visits as set
out at paragraph 7 of the report be endorsed subject to the inclusion of a box for
any final remarks in the Elected Member Frontline Safeguarding Team Visits
form.

CHILDREN AND FAMILIES PERFORMANCE SCORECARD -
QUARTER 4, 2017-18

Consideration was given to the performance scorecard for the Children and
Families Service for Quarter 4 of 2017-18.

The measures rated red related to the % of cared for children in long term
stability placement, % of children to be looked after due to adoption and % of new
education, health and care plans (EHCP) completed within 20 weeks.

Further expansion on 2.4-% of cared for children in long term stability placement
of the scorecard was requested.

In response the Portfolio Holder confirmed that a substantial piece of work was
being undertaken in respect of providing children with a permanent placement.
Stability meetings had been introduced and additional resources were being
provide to undertake the necessary work.

RESOLVED

That the contents of the report and scorecard be noted.



75

76

Page 8

FORWARD PLAN

Consideration was given to the areas of the forward plan which fell within the
remit of the Committee.

RESOLVED

That the forward plan be received.
WORK PROGRAMME

Consideration was given to the work programme.
Revisions were made to the work programme as follows:-

(1) Sustainable Modes of Transport Strategy to be considered at the meeting on
28 January 2019;

(2) DCS Assurance to be a briefing note circulated separately and therefore
removed from the work programme;

(3) LSCB Annual report to include and update on Reflective and Serious Case
Reviews;

(4) ILACS to be a briefing note circulated separately and therefore removed from
the work programme;

(5) Supported childcare for 2/3 year olds to be a briefing note circulated
separately;

(6) Multi Academy Trusts (MATS)-Update, including role of Cheshire East Council
and how work together with partners to be combined with the item on
Academisation of Schools and to be a briefing note/training session;

(7) Annual Education report to include an update on SSIF;

(8) Bed waits for those with eating disorders to be included on the item on
Emotional Health and Wellbeing-CAHMS;

(9) Task and Finish Group to be established in relation to 16-25 SEND;

(10) The following to be included as possible/future items:-

(i) FACT22;

(i) Exclusions;

(iii) Regional Adoption Agency;

(iv) 22 Actions for SEND (Possibly for the December meeting);
(v) Reprocurement of food contracts;

(vi) Domestic Abuse contract —Update on new provision

(11) An additional meeting to be arranged in December to consider the budget.
RESOLVED

That the work programme be approved subject to the amendments as outlined
above.

The meeting commenced at 1.30 pm and concluded at 3.20 pm

Councillor Rhoda Bailey (Chairman)



Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



14/09/18

Page 11 Agenda Item 6

‘ CV@ Cheshire and Wirral Partnership INHS |
NHS Foundation Trust

Update on CAMHS for
East Cheshire Children &
Families OSC

Dr Matthew Howard -CD CWP East
Cheshire CAMHS

& Rob Lupton-Team lead for EHS
24th September 2018

Care ¢ Well-being ¢ Partnership

From the minutes of the
March 2018 meeting

* That a report on Emotionally Healthy Schools,
Statistics for referrals to A&E, and success of
the out of hours service be considered by the
Committee in September 2018.

« That a report on the waiting time for 16/17 year
olds with eating disorders to be hospitalised be
considered by the Committee at a future
meeting.

( CWP
Care ¢ Well-being ¢ Partnership



Page 12

"
UST Q' ‘ ) . .
W I
DROP’ C P Cheshire and W’”i;:iﬁ?f:f?ﬁ INHS|

Team

D
Care ¢ Well-being ¢ Partnership

(2
UST @ . N .
h cw Cheshire and Wirral Partnershi|
DROPIN ( 5) Losioic e
A

rinciples that underpin
the Emotionally

Curriculum,
An ethos and teaching and Healthy Schools

environment that learning to promate Project.
promotes respect resilience and support
and values diversity social and emotional

learning The following diagram

presents eight
Targeted Erols principles to promote
UL student voice emotional health and
appropriate A to influence a q
toferral Leadership and management decisians We”be|ng in schools
and colleges. J

Staff www.acseed.org

development
Working with to support their own A
P—— welbeing and tat Schools emotional

AR health and wellbeing
Identifying need and audit

monitoring impact of
interventions

ngland, 2 (CV®
Care ¢ Well-being * PartnershElp gla d,

14/09/18



Page 13

TN HUST@ . . .
Cheshie DROBJN (“@ e s SR

Council? TN W

Links Team Offer

Mental Health

M:Vr\]/?;izgh Consultation ';aecﬂlgé?itsg First Aid Two
Traini Sessions ) Day Youth
raining sessions el

Care ¢ Well-being ® Partnership

o (™ .
2R\ 1USTR < S NHS
Cheshirebast)  DLUALY c@ Sishireabd Wit pertterhie
Council? T g g N0

EHS 1-Day Training Session

“Feel better equipped to incorporate skills
learned into interventions at school.”

Topics Covered } ; ) !
“Confidence to implement strategies /

resources talked about on the course prior
H ”

e Outcome Measures to feeling the need to refer to CAMHS. |
— Scoring the SDQ “SDQ scoring will have immediate impact.
Increase ability to focus in on specific |
areas.”

e Anxiety

o Case studies

¢ Signs and symptoms —
chool, home, Risks

e Self-Harm
Care ¢ Well-being * Partnership

14/09/18



Page 14

oy o
= IUSTQ - ' S|
Cheshiretast) DL G‘@ e L

Council? Frers

EHS CO”SUltation “This service has proved very effective in ourf

setting. It has helped us to support children who |

SDQ Scores
« Strategies are developing problems, which hopefully |
« Resources means we will not have to refer onto CAMHS in |
* Signposting the future. Please keep this service available to '
all schools as mental health issues are
SChOOI becoming much more common in primary '
schools.” I
Risks:
l To Self Home
To Others

From Others

“
D
Care ¢ Well-being ¢ Partnership

o) (2
2\ 1USTR < S NHS
Cheshirebast)  DLUALY c@ Cheshire b Wlers Parrestie
Council? N g W

EHS Facilitated Reflection

An opportunity for school staff to reflect
on their own thoughts and feelings. This
could be about a case they brought to

Consultation or anything else they would This is the
like to discuss. least
accessed

service.

D
Care ¢ Well-being ¢ Partnership

14/09/18



14/09/18
Page 15

Cheshi Eﬁi\\\ DiluosFiN G@ Cheshire and Wirral Partnership [I775]
5 "gou:dl";; TN A W NHS Foundation Trust
Other work

Basic Suicide Prevention Peer Education Student Voice

Half Day Session Programme
[ @ Jc SR e, Student
()

2 A Voice
N O Suicide ¥ .® =
Preventing suicide in .
@)

Cheshire & Merseyside
dwae®

Working together to improve health and
wellbeing in Cheshre and Merseyside

D
Care ¢ Well-being ® Partnership

Referrals to A&E

» Caveats:
— Leighton not Macclesfield
— Data collection changes month on month
— hard to extract meaningful themes
— itis not our data

* Questions

— what data is collected?

— what are we interested in?

— what is the collector interested in?

IS the commissioner interested in?

D
Care ¢ Well-being * Partnership




Page 16

Referrals to A&E

* A typical month at Leighton hospital:
— April 2018
— Under 16 years old

* DSH 10 (8 Overdoses, 2 Cutting)
* Non-DSH 7

-16 & 17
* DSH 7 (6 ODs, 1 Cutting)
* Non-DSH 2

( pr
Care ¢ Well-being ¢ Partnership

Examples of those who haven't
self harmed

* 17 low mood; psychotic disorder; alcohol

+ 15 pt feeling suicidal, ongoing for 10 months
family and GP not aware pt left home at 00.00

» 14 woke this AM with suicidal thoughts came
alone with NWAS (mum unaware of admission)

» 12 c/o threatening self harm, pulling hair out.
« 15 Angry;punched a wall right hand swollen
anxiety, low mood auditory hallucinations

( CWP
Care ¢ Well-being ¢ Partnership

14/09/18



Page 17

Comments

» The data needs to enable us to quickly identify
children where the pathway is atypical so they
can be looked at in more detail, for example:

— CYP who have self-harmed who don't get admitted
(Royal College guidance wasn't followed)

— CYP presenting with symptoms of mental health
disorder who are not known to CAMHS and aren't
referred to CAMHS

— The path by which CYP who haven't self harmed and

t presenting with psychiatric emergency end

nths of low

(cwp
Care ¢ Well-being ¢ Partnership

Next steps

* Meet with Commissioner and ED to refine the data
collection to answer questions meaningful to all 3 parties
— Central meeting 8/10

* Link To Macclesfield DGH (enquiries made through
Commissioner at meeting on 5/9/18)

* Find a willing (junior doctor?) to analyse it

+ Use that information to improve pathways for CYP and
their families and to hopefully free up capacity in ED

: < CWP
Care ¢ Well-being ¢ Partnership :

14/09/18



14/09/18
Page 18

Out of hours service

» Launch
— Phone line March 2018
— Risk assessment service launched July 2018
* Open
— 5-10pm weeknights
— 10am-8pm weekends
— 2 x CAMHS clinicians
» Promotion
schools, CCGs (GPs) and third sector, |

( CWP
Care ¢ Well-being ¢ Partnership

Demographics
April-June 18

350 Calls

311 Patients
Average age 12.8
56% female

Av duration 28 mins
Av time 18.04

e by CCG

Yo South &

( CWP
Care ¢ Well-being ¢ Partnership




14/09/18
Page 19

Waiting time for admission for 16/17
year olds with eating disorders

» Type of bed needed

* In Ancora
— 4 ED beds
— Non-acute admission
— Within a few days
— Admission is not usually a desired option.

— Only when necessary and only for as long as
ssary-weight restoration

( pr
Care ¢ Well-being ¢ Partnership

* “If a YP needs an NHSE bed rather than Ancora
(either because 4 ED beds are occupied or
because the YP needs a specialist ED bed eg
NG feeding) then that situation changes daily. In
my recent experience (NHSE) has been able to
find a bed fairly promptly depending on how far

the family are prepared to travel.”

( CWP
Care ¢ Well-being ¢ Partnership



14/09/18
Page 20

Thank You

 Matthew Howard
 matthew.howard2@nhs.net

V@

Care ¢ Well-being ® Partnership

10



2017'18 Cheshire E@l\'

Council%



Corporate Parenting Committee Annual Report 2017/2018

Foreword

- It has been a great pleasure working
with members and officer colleagues
in this second year of the Corporate
Parenting Committee.

The Committee is an advisory
committee to the Cabinet; its purpose
is to ensure that the Council
effectively discharges its role as
Corporate Parent for all children and
young people in care and care leavers
from O - 25 years of age and to hold
partners to account for the discharge of their responsibilities.

We have a continued improvement strategy as we scrutinise
and evaluate the ways in which we look after those in our
care. Throughout this work however, we are constantly
mindful of the voice of the child/young person so that we can
build into our plans ways in which they feel we can best help
them.

The Committee receives regular updates on National Issues
which may affect the way in which we consider our
improvement journey. Throughout the year we have been
heartened by the dedication and commitment of the officers
involved, in constantly achieving improved outcomes for those
for whom we care.

The role of the Corporate Parenting Committee is to oversee
the corporate parenting function of Cheshire East Council and
its partners. It works to ensure that the Executive Director for
People (the Director of Children’s Services for Cheshire East)
and Cabinet Member for Children and Families meet their
statutory responsibility towards all children from within the
Borough, particularly those from vulnerable groups. The work
undertaken is also scrutinised in part by the Cheshire East
Children and Families Overview and Scrutiny Committee and
the Cheshire East Health and Wellbeing Board.

Gill Merry

Chair of Cheshire East Corporate Parenting Committee

22 abed


http://moderngov.cheshireeast.gov.uk/ecminutes/mgUserInfo.aspx?UID=461

The Corporate Parenting Committee

The committee is comprised of twelve cross party members
with Officers in attendance, as required, to cover agenda
items and assisted by Democratic Service Officers. It has met
on seven occasions over 2017-18:

18t April 2017

2nd May 2017

4t July 2017

19th September 2017
14t November 2017
23 January 2018
20t March 2018

Attendance at meetings has been excellent with many elected
members holding roles in other areas of the Children and
Families Directorate, including Children and Families Scrutiny,
Fostering Panel, Adoption Panel and as school governors in a
variety of schools across the borough.

Cheshire East Profilel

1 Note that some figures may not correspond with published national data due to

The following is key data relating to cared for children and
care leavers:

e At the end of March 2018 there were 477 children and
young people being cared for by the local authority.
This is an increase of 55 (13%) from March 2017.

e This equates to 63 children for every 10,000 in the
general population of Cheshire East, and is now higher
than the latest available (2016-17 statutory return)
England average of 62 but lower than the North West
average of 86. This is also higher than the latest
available (2016-17 statutory return) statistical
neighbour group average of 58. Based on this figure
we are at the higher end of our statistical neighbour
group in terms of the rate of cared for children.

e 146 individuals left care in 2017-18, compared to 145
in 2015-16.

e Cheshire East supported 18 unaccompanied asylum
seekers children (UASC) with placements in 2017-18
which is a rise of 64% compared to last year. It is
recognised that many of these young people have
experienced significant adverse life events both within
their countries of origin, and during their journeys to the

reporting arrangements, eg, rounding up and down.

£z abed



UK. The resulting physical, emotional and mental
health needs of this group of young people can be
particularly complex and require specialist support
services.

The gender profile of children and young people in care
is split 53% male and 47% female, which is a slightly
larger ratio of males compared to last year at 51% and
49% respectively. 44% of the children and young
people in care are between the ages of 10 and 15.
There are more males than females aged 16+ in care,
whereas there are slightly more females aged 4 and
under.

The average age of children and young people
entering care this year has dropped slightly to 7
compared to age 8 for the previous 3 years.

A total of 200 children and young people have
entered care in 2017-18, which is up from 181 in 2016-
17.

As at the end of March 2018, 83% of all children and
young people in care were living in a family
situation.

As at 31st March 2018 there were 45 young people
supported in either residential homes or schools.

e As at 31st March 2018 the ethnic profile of cared for
children is predominantly white British (88%), with
the biggest other ethnicities of white other and other
mixed background. This is an almost identical profile to
last year. There has been a small increase in White
European children entering care over the past two
years. In 2017-18 there were 6 (5 Slovakian, 1 polish)
in 2016-17 we had 8 (6 Polish, 1 Czech, 1 Lithuanian).

e 15 children and young people were adopted over
2017-18, which is a 42% drop from the 26 children and
young people adopted in 2016-17. There are however
a further 41 individuals currently in care where the plan
is for adoption.

Focus Areas

Each Committee includes a focus area, where Members look
in detail at an area of service that impacts on the outcomes for
children and young people in care. The focus areas over the
year have been:

e Provision and outcomes for care leavers

e Staffing and infrastructure, including recruitment and
retention

e Participation and Engagement

e Health and Wellbeing

e Education, employment and training

yZ ebed



e Placement sufficiency including fostering, adoption,
residential care, out of borough placements

Services considered by the Committee

In continuing our improvement journey during 2017/8,
measured against desired outcomes, we have considered:

e Family Court Proceedings

e Children’s Social Care recruitment and retention
e Health of Cared for Children and Young People
e Service Performance Reports

¢ National Developments

e Cared for Children’s participation

¢ Independent Reviewing Officer’s report

e Virtual School’s Annual Report

e Fostering Panel’s Annual Report

e Adoption Panel’s Annual Report

e Local Safeguarding Board’s Annual Report

e Care Leaver’s Annual Report

Family Court Proceedings

Consideration was given to a report from the Director of
Children’s Social Care reporting on the background and
complexity, giving members an insight into the demands on
social workers working from working in the Family Courts
based in Liverpool, Crewe and Chester.

Children’s Social Care Recruitment and
Retention

In listening to the voice of the young people, Members seek to
be assured that the measures taken in recruitment and
retention of social workers continue to be effective, since the
constant changes to social workers proves to be both
disruptive and unsettling for young people seeking for stability
in their lives.

Health of Cared for Children and Young
People

Some of the children and young people who come into our
care have had the minimum of health care, not having visited
GP’s for age checks, not visiting a dentist at all, and with very
little consideration given to basic dietary needs, leading to
more healthy lives.

It was noted that it was important to recognise both the
statutory responsibilities for this vulnerable group of children
and young people and the role of agencies working together
as corporate parents, in having “high aspirations” for their
future. There was some concern that dates for statutory health
and other checks were falling behind the time periods set. The
committee looked for reassurance from Children’s Services
and our heath partners that this matter was a high priority and

Gz ebed



performance has improved over the year from 64% on quarter
4 of 2016-17 to 86% in quarter 4 of 2017-18 for the
percentage of initial health assessments requested within 48
hours of coming into care. The percentage of initial health
assessments completed by paediatricians within 20 working
days has increased from 58% to 78% over the same period.
This remains an area of focus.

Service Performance

The comprehensive performance scorecard is considered on
a quarterly basis against the five areas of the current
Corporate Parenting Strategy.

Members scrutinise and challenge officers around
performance to ensure that children and young people in our
care get the support that they need, when they need it. The
scorecard provides trend and benchmarking data, along with
targets and RAG ratings to ensure that the trends in
performance are in the right direction. Where necessary, it is
expected that actions are put in place to address
underperformance and progress is reported to future
committees.

National Developments

Each Committee is presented with an Update Report that sets
out any national developments that may impact on services
for cared for children and care leavers. The Committee

consider any action that may need to be taken in the light of
these developments.

We seek to be fully informed on all National Issues relating to
our role, benchmarking ourselves against national ratings and
any other similar authorities, being very conscious that
implementation of any new legislation can take time to embed
across service areas.

A new National Adviser to support young people as they leave
the care system has been appointed as part of the
government’'s drive to improve the lives of vulnerable
children. Mark Riddell, MBE, has been appointed as the
National Implementation Adviser for care leavers. He visited
Cheshire East in January 2018 and gave an overview of his
findings. These will be incorporated into the new Corporate
Parenting Strategy that will be launched in 2018-19.

Homelessness Reduction Act

The Act will come into force on 1st April 2018 and will place
new duties on Local Authorities and other public bodies to
identify, support and refer households at risk of
homelessness.

9z ebed



Local Developments

Updates on local developments have included:

e Work on the Corporate Parenting Strategy

e Proposed framework for engagement with the
Corporate Parenting Committee

e Participation with children and young people

e Appointment of new Looked After Children Designated
Nurse

e Visit from the National Implementation adviser for care
leavers

e Updates on Ignition and Signs of Safety

e Support for teams from the Lead Practitioner.

A detailed discussion took place on work to review the
Corporate Parenting Strategy and in particular the role of, and
relationship with, elected members. Amongst a number of
suggestions Members were invited to submit pen pictures of
themselves so that cared for children and care leavers could
get to know more about them as corporate parents, and to
undertake frontline visits to social work teams and where
appropriate to meet children and to share resources and
knowledge as part of a continuing process of development.
These will take place in 2018-19.

Cared for Children’s participation

During the course of the year we have been resolute in our
desire to hear the voice of the children and young people in
our care. Young people were keen to establish their own
‘shadow committee’ and we ensure that we have attendance
at their committee to listen to what is important to them.

It was reported that the Head of Service and the Portfolio
Holder were currently attending meetings of ‘My Voice’, the
Children in Care Council, and their representatives would be
invited to come to a meeting of the Committee in the near
future with a view to challenging the Committee on what they
wanted.

We routinely invite representative from My Voice to the
Corporate Parenting Committee, which we hold at a time
when they are able to attend. We are particularly keen to
understand how we can effectively ensure that we listen to
their concerns and aspirations. Each meeting includes an
input from young people, whereby they can feed in their views
even if they do not wish to attend.

Consideration has been given to overall service priorities
around participation for the current year, and details of the
range of ways in which children and young people are
engaged in decisions which affect them.

Members were particularly interested in work associated with
early pregnancies, preparations to assist in the transition to

L2 ebed



independent living, the arrangements to involve children in
care outside the area and how to keep track of children who
no longer wished to engage with the services provided once
they are over 18 years of age.

We have been pleased to note the effectiveness of the mentor
service together with the job coach, which is proving a great
success with those making the transition from care.

Annual Reports

Independent Reviewing Officer: members considered the
Independent Reviewing Officer's 2016/17 Annual Report and
the IRO’s contribution to quality assuring and improving
services for cared for children and care leavers.

Virtual School’s Annual Report: the Service Manager:
Virtual School, gave a presentation to the Committee on the
Virtual School Head teacher’'s 2017 Annual Report and drew
attention to:

e Context and Operation

e Outcomes 2017

e Strengths of the Virtual School

e Challenges for the Virtual School
e Planned Solutions

e Future developments

In considering the report, Members of the Committee made a
number of comments on the continued support for cared for
children, including access to Pupil Premium.

Fostering Panel’s Annual Report: this is not a statutory
requirement, however, it has been customary for its
production on an annual basis, outlining the work of the Panel
and the challenges it faces as it seeks to approve and review
foster carers.

Adoption Panel’s Annual Report: this was the final report of
the Cheshire East Adoption Panel, since from 1st July 2017
the panel became part of the Regional Adoption Agency,
Adoption Counts. The report provided a quality assurance
feedback on the standards and approach across the service
as to the suitability of prospective adopters and proposed
placements.

Local Safeguarding Children Board’s Annual Report: The
report helps us to better understand how organisations and
people work together and outlines how the Board and
partners can objectively and critically learn from what works
well and act to improve what may not work as well as
intended.

Care Leaver’s Annual Report:. The Committee considered
the Care Leavers Annual Report 2017-18. The report provided
details of the work undertaken to help care leavers to be
better prepared and supported to live independently; have
improved access to education employment and training; better

8

gz abed



access to health support; access to housing when leaving
care and achieve financial stability. New Statutory guidance
has been published stating that all local authorities needed to
implement a 21-25 offer to care leavers. The guidance does
not specify how soon after commencement of the duty the
local offer should be published. However, the aim is to publish
Cheshire East’s local offer in the autumn.

Corporate Parenting Strategy Progress

The existing Corporate Parenting Strategy has the following
five priorities, ie, the areas that children and young people told
us mattered most to them:

Involve me

Provide me with a good safe home
Keep me healthy

Help me achieve

Support me to move into adult life

o=

Progress against the corporate parenting strategy has been
reported to the committee on an ongoing basis. A summary
of progress is attached at Appendix 1.

Priorities for 2018/19

Our key priority for 2018-19 is to develop and implement the
new Corporate Parenting Strategy, ensuring the 5 areas are

prioritised and linked in with other council services and wider
partner agencies, ie:

e Being a good corporate parent

e Achieving permanency and staying safe

e Improving health and wellbeing

e Ensuring good education, employment and training
e Preparing for Adulthood

We aim to ensure that the participation of children and young
people will be central to all that we do.

62 abed



Appendix 1

Corporate Parenting Strategy Progress 2017-18

Involve Me

e Children and young people are at the heart of decision
making in relation to all aspects of their lives and are
supported to make their views and wishes heard.

e There are a range of opportunities for children and young
people to influence and shape service planning and delivery.
o All staff have the knowledge and skills to engage with

children and young people and encourage, promote and
support their active participation.

Participation with Children and Young People

In August 2017, responsibility for the delivery of participation
with children and young people was brought ‘in house’ from
the Children’s Society to Cheshire East’ Youth Service. One
part time worker transferred across to the Council and another
Lead Worker post was subsequently filled. These roles
coordinate most of the participation activity with children in
care and care leavers.

In 2017-18 young people on the Children in Care Council
decided to change its name to ‘My Voice’. This group meets
weekly in term time in Sandbach. The current focus is to
increase awareness and attendance at the meetings through
encouraging Social Workers and others to promote
participation with their young people.

The Participation Team have been making links and engaging
with Crewe YMCA, Pure Insight, Voice for Children, the Cared
for and Care Leaver Team and Watermill House (P3) to
develop a Care Leaver Council/Care Leaver Voice group. The
team will be working with these groups to find out what is
going well, what could be developed and ideas to make things
better around the following priority areas:

e Better prepared and supported to live independently

e Improved access to education, employment and
training

e Experiencing stability

¢ Feeling safe and secure

e Improved access to health and support and achieving
financial stability.

To date consultations have taken place with young people
around improved access to education, employment and
training opportunities. Young people were positive about their
relationships with some Personal Advisors and Senior Young
Person’s Advisors (PAs), however they feel that there is not
enough feedback/support from Social Workers and potential
employers when doing taster days. Also when living in the
YMCA there is less incentive to get into employment because
this impacts on rent benefits, making it difficult to achieve
sustainability. Young people would like to see employability

10

o€ ebed



hubs/training and longer drop in sessions with Senior Young
Person’s Advisors.

The service is responding to the issues raised by care
leavers, including exploring ways in which the relationships
between PAs and care leavers can be strengthened. In terms
of incentives to get into employment, the service offers ‘top-
up’ funding to ensure that the young person is no worse off
than if they were on benefits. A meeting has been arranged
with the individual who raised the issue to ensure that they are
supported to access this fund. One of the immediate actions
taken in response to care leaver feedback is that when visiting
care leavers, PAs no longer take paper and record during the
meeting as care leavers did not like this approach. The bigger
challenges in relation to employment, housing and health are
being tackled within our new corporate parenting strategy
(participation with children and young people runs as a theme
throughout the new strategy). The new facebook account
(detailed below) is a further example of how the team are
working and thinking differently about different ways to
engage children and young people.

Young people have been a part of the interview panel for the
new Virtual School Head. One of the Care Leaver young
people is also getting involved with the Foster Care Panel as
well. A great example of us as Corporate Parents helping our
young people to achieve and come into the family business.
Care Leavers are getting involved with the commissioning

process too as they plan to be involved in the Substance
Misuse Service Tender to ensure they are involved in decision
making processes for services that affect their lives.

Star Awards and November Children’s Rights Month (NCRM).
NCRM is where everyone working with children and young
people in Cheshire East can celebrate and raise awareness of
children’s rights in a variety of different ways. One of the main
celebrations for cared for children and care leavers in
November is the ‘Star Awards’. This celebration event and
awards ceremony for cared for children and young people and
care leavers in Cheshire East, took place on Sunday 19
November 2017 in Crewe and every young person received
an invite in the post to attend. The event in 2017-18 was co-
produced with young people and were based on nominations
from a range of professionals. During NCRM, a number of
young people were also innvolved in takeover day — this
inculded ‘taking over’ the roles of the Executive Director for
People (DCS role) and the Director of Children’s Social Care
roles for the day.

New Facebook Group

A new Cheshire East Care Leavers Facebook account went
live on the 1st March 2018. This is primarily for
announcements, new events coming up and anything
significant that the service wishes to relay to Cheshire East
Care Leavers. It is hoped that this can reach a greater
audience to raise awareness around apprenticeship offers,

11

L ebed



Job fairs and anything else of significance. This is managed
by the Cared for Children and Care Leavers Service on a daily
basis and is for posting information out to care leavers in a
format that is accesible to them.

Game Changer Conference

Young people from Cheshire East took place in the pre-event
consultation for the Game Changer conference in Blackpool -
the Game Changer event is a North West regional event for
children in care and care leavers and is the first of its kind.
Some of the young people were also involved earlier in the
year in the planning of the event, that took place in Blackpool
on Saturday 4th November.

The Independent Visitor Service

The Independent Visitor Service in Cheshire East is delivered
by The Children’s Society (TCS). TCS adhere to the new
National Independent Visitor Standards, which have been
developed alongside other voluntary organisations. There are
14 Standards in all and, more recently, these 14 standards
have been made more child and young person friendly by
children and young people involved in an Independent Visitor
Service. This is expected to enable more children and young
people to understand their right to an Independent Visitor.

Xmas dinner

Staff from children’s services raised around £100 to provide a
celebratory Christmas dinner for young people in care/care
leavers.

Participation Network

The participation network has continued to support all staff
working in children’s services to improve participation with
children and young people. The Participation Network Forum
is changing its name to the ‘Investing in Children and Young
People Partnership’ as in the collective partnership group we
will be applying for the Investing in Children’s Award in 2018-
19. The partnership will be getting involved with the Children
and Young People’s Summer Conference, Care Leaver
events and the Star Awards later this year e.g. facilitating
sessions, ensuring that their young people are involved with
planning the event.

Signs of Safety

Cheshire East launched its implementation of the ‘Signs of
Safety' approach as our way of working with children, young
people and families in 2017. ‘Signs of Safety’ is widely
recognised internationally as the leading approach to
casework. The model enables children and young people to
talk about things that go well in their family as well as things
that worry them.

12

Z¢ abed



Provide me with a good, safe home

o Improve the availability, quality and stability of local
placements

e Ensure that children and young people are fully engaged in
decisions relating to their placement choice

e Ensure that only those children who have no alternative
placement will reside in care

Increased Demand

The rise in demand for children’s social care services, in
particular in the number of individuals being cared for by the
local authority over recent years has put increasing demand
on the service. This is in line with national and regional trends.
As at March 2014, Cheshire East supported 333 individuals.
As at March 2017, this had risen to 428 individuals — a rise of
95 (29%). At the end of March 2018 there were 477 children
and young people being cared for by the local authority, an
increase of 55 (13%) from March 2017.

In 2017-18 the Coucil committed a growth bid to cover the
increase in placement costs. In order to mitigate as far as
possible the impact of rising numbers and costs, the following
action was taken, ie, we:

* Worked hard to increase the numbers of children leaving
care through adoption (whilst only 15 were adopted over
2017-18, there were a further 41 individuals in care where
the plan is for adoption).

« Worked as part of a shared fostering service with
Cheshire West & Chester, Warrington and Halton
Councils to improve the recruitment of internal foster
carers

* Invested in project Macclesfield and Crewe to prevent the
escalation of need

* Continued to improve social work practice (Signs of
safety)

» Worked with the LSCB to improve the early help offer.

Foster Care

Work around developing sub-regional collaborative
arrangements for fostering services took place in 2017-18.
On 9t May 2017, Cabinet considered a report, which sought
approval to progress the development of a shared fostering
service for Cheshire East alongside Warrington, Halton and
Cheshire West and Chester. The report also sought approval
to explore the feasibility of a single local authority delivering
the functions of the fostering service on behalf of the
partnership.

In 2017-18 we have been actively driving forward the
recruitment campaign for more foster carers, which in due
course should allow for better matching of the children we
place. We are specifically targeting the smaller ethnic
communities and the LGBT community. Cheshire East
maximised the fostering recruitment campaign during Foster
Carer Fortnight. This included advertising digitally and PR

13

¢¢ abed



activity via the ‘You Can Foster campaign. We also looked at
more advertising on Facebook, our internal communication
channels and a partnership newsletter.

Work is underway in terms of providing more information via
the Cheshire East Fostering Website. The aim is to provide
up to date contact information, links to helpful resources and
easier access to policies and procedures. Training will be
offered to foster carers who are not confident using
computers.

We are working to improve the support carers receive from
their supervising social workers. We have over the last few
months recruited several permanent members of staff to bring
stability and consistency to the service.

The foster carer newsletter is now regularly being distributed
on a quarterly basis and the foster carer forums have
recommenced to keep foster carers up to date and give them
the opportunity to air their views. The support groups also
continue on a regular basis.

Residential care

Cheshire East aims to provide a more flexible range of
children homes and to increase the capacity to care for more
of our children within the borough, so redesigned our
residential homes. A contract was awarded to BetterCare
Keys, a national children home provider, to run from 1 April

2017. However, the provider has had significant challenges in
mobilising the service due to recruitment issues and the
service will be re-commissioned in 2018-19.

Adoption
2017-18 saw the launch our Regional Adoption Agency, called

Adoption Counts. This is a partnership with Stockport,
Trafford, Salford and Manchester Councils, which was one of
the first new adoption agencies to open for business in July
2017. The aim of ‘Adoption Counts’ is to maximise the
economies of scale and expertise so that more children are
matched with adopters much sooner and locally within the
geographical boundary of the agency. There is a particular
focus on placing more children for adoption who; have
complex needs, are part of a sibling group, and are from black
and ethnic minority backgrounds. Adopters and children are
also benefitting from a regional approach to post adoption
support.

Cheshire East celebrated National Adoption Week in October
2017. This included a range of activities including a media
campaign (billboards, posters, digital screens and digital
media adverts). There were also press adverts during
adoption week in a range of newspapers, including the
Macclesfield Express. Adoption was also promoted through
social media, including facebook and twitter using using
hashtags #nationaladoptionweek and #supportadoption.
Cheshire East received 27 enquiries during this week (the

14

p¢ abed



highest weekly number to date). This included an open
evening on 18th October, which 14 households attended.
There were also 9,968 visits to our website during the week,
which peaked at 1,881 on 21st October.

Quality assurance

Quality assurance for the Children’s Homes that Cheshire
East commission or operate directly is important to ensure
the best services for our cared for children. Regulation 44
visits and subsequent reports are an important part of the
quality assurance framework surrounding Children’s Homes
and the greater the level of independence, the better. Each
Children’s Home is required to appoint an independent person
to undertake Regulation 44 visits and to date Cheshire East
Council have added support and challenge to the process via
local Councillors and Voice for Children attending visits.

Ignition

The Ignition Panel has continued to ensure that children and
young people are fully engaged in decisions relating to their
future accommodation needs. See further detail below under
‘Support me to move to adult life’.

Keep me healthy

e Ensure that all Cheshire East cared for children have an initial
health assessment within 20 working days of entering care,
and statutory review assessment and a robust health care plan
agreed (6 monthly for under- fives, annually thereafter).

e Improve the emotional health and wellbeing of cared for
children, young people and care leavers

e Promote healthy lifestyles amongst all cared for children.
e Ensure effective health transition planning

Initial Health Assessments

There has been a continued focus on improving the timeliness
of initial health assessments and reviews over 2017-18. As at
quarter 4, there were 86% of initial health assessments
requested within 48 hours of coming into care, and 78% of
initial health assessments completed by paediatricians within
the statutory requirement of 20 working days. This compares
to 64% and 58%, respectively, as at the end of 2016-17.
Close monitoring of this performance indicator is essential to
ensure continued improvement and it remains a standing item
for discussion at the Health Interface Group Meetings held
regularly between Health and Local Authority partners.

There is further work to do with the aspiration of ensuring that
all children entering care are supported to have their health
care needs identified and met in a timely way and this will

15

Ge abed



continue to be a priority in the 2018-19 Corporate Parenting
Strategy.

Review Health Assessments (RHAS)

For children who are under 5 years of age it is a statutory
requirement that a RHA should be completed twice in a 12
month period. For children and young people 5 years and
above, an RHA is required once a year. Review health
assessments are completed for all Cheshire East cared for
children and also for children placed in the Cheshire East area
by other Local Authorities. Reporting of performance with
regards to timeliness of assessments continues to be
monitored on a quarterly basis and discussed at the Health
Interface  Group meetings. A collaborative approach has
resulted in a visible improvement in the timeliness of RHAs.
True partnership working is yielding positive results and this
will continue throughout 2018-19.

At the end of 2017-18, 79% of children who had been in care
for more than 12 months had an up to date RHA. For those
that were not completed within timescale, analysis of the
contributing factors that led to the breach is carried out to
identify the areas where further work is required.

Care Leaver’s Health Passports

During 2017-18 there has been extensive work completed by
the Clinical Nurse Specialist 16+ in the Cared for Children’s
Team to develop an effective system for ensuring that young
people are leaving care at the age of 18 years with a

meaningful, relevant summary of their health history.
Engagement has been successful in a large proportion of
cases and has involved an innovative and constantly evolving
approach to access even the most hard to reach young
people. The current format of the Health Passport has been
developed with the involvement of young people. Therefore
there is confidence that this document is appropriate and what
they want.

32 out of 52 health passports were completed during 2017-18.
As this was a new process, issues regarding gaining consent
from the young people were identified as causing some
delay/difficulty in completing the Health Passports. For 2018-
19 the 16+ Nurse Specialist has begun to request consent
when completing review health assessments from 16 years of
age thus increasing the opportunities to obtain the required
consent in time for the health passport to be completed prior
to the young person reaching 18.

Training and Supervision of Health Professionals

‘Looked after children: Knowledge, skills and competences of
healthcare staff (March 2015) is an intercollegiate role
framework written by the ‘Royal College of General
Practitioners’, ‘Royal College of Nursing’ and ‘Royal College
of Paediatrics and Child Health’ to provide a framework of
competencies required for Health Professionals who work with
cared for children. Health Professionals responsible for
completing Review Health Assessments are required to
demonstrate competence to Level 3 of this framework. At the

16

9¢ ebed



end of 2017-18, 91% of all Health Professionals had attended
Level 3 training during that year. Also, as part of the Quality
Assurance process, training needs may be identified on an ad
hoc basis and feedback to practitioners is provided by the
Specialist Nurses for Cared for Children when required to
ensure health assessments are of a consistently high quality
that remain child focussed.

All Health Practitioners who are named professionals for
cared for children received supervision from the Cared for
Children Specialist Nursing Team on a 3 monthly basis. This
is an opportunity to review practice and monitor outcomes of
health interventions. During training and supervision cycles,
identification of cared for children with SEND is essential to
ensure that both the Review Health Assessment and the
Education and Health Care Plans are interlinked and used to
inform each other.

Unaccompanied Asylum Seekers

During 2017-18 the number of unaccompanied asylum
seeking children (UASC) has increased within the Cheshire
East area. It is recognised that many of these young people
have experienced significant adverse life events both within
their countries of origin, and during their journeys to the UK.
The resulting physical, emotional and mental health needs of
this group of young people can be particularly complex and
specialist support services may be required. In recognition of
the unique health and wellbeing needs of this group of young
people, a group has been set up with membership from

partner agencies, including Health. The purpose of this group
is to develop effective pathways to ensure that health needs
are identified promptly, and that referrals to appropriate
support services are being made. NHS England has also
recognised that this is a concerning issue nationwide and is
providing guidance across Regional Networks to enable
services to work effectively.

Looked After Children (LAC) Designated Nurse

A new Looked After Children (LAC) Designated Nurse for
Cheshire East came into post in December 2017. This role is
pivotal to strategic planning, quality assurance and
performance monitoring and is essential in advising on the
provision of services for vulnerable cared for children and care
leavers within the health economy. Key elements of this
essential role are supporting the health needs of this group of
young people and ensuring that their needs are understood
across the health and social care economy.

Family Nurse Partnership

The Family Nurse Partnership helps local young parents to
increase their confidence and gives them the guidance and
support they need to give their baby the best start in life.
Young parents are paired with a specially trained family nurse
who visits them regularly, from the early stages of pregnancy
until their child is two. The offer was extended in 2017-18 to
first time pregnant vulnerable young people in care/care
leavers up to the age of 24 (it was previously age 19).

17

L€ ebed



Emotional health and wellbeing

The emotional health and well-being of our cared for children
is assessed via the completion of a strengths and difficulties
questionnaire (SDQ). The data highlights the need for a
greater response from children social care and health.
Developments to improve this service area are being
discussed as part of the health and social care interface
meeting and is being proactively picked up by our looked after
children's nurse. This is a key priority of the new corporate
parenting strategy.

Help me to achieve

o Ensure that schools are challenged and supported to help
all children progress and achieve to their full potential

e Improve the way that children move between schools so
that this is timely, smooth and well supported

¢ Increase the number of children with excellent attendance
and reduce the number of days lost through exclusions

e Increase the number of young people who sustain
transition from school to training and employment

Education Results

Improving outcomes for cared for children remains a priority
for all staff but most especially for the Virtual School. All
children have been allocated a named Advisor and additional
support and tuition has been made available. Although small
numbers, there has been an improvement in the number of

children who reach the expectations at the end of reception
this year. This is now at 50%, which is 10% above the 2016
level and the highest result for Cheshire East.

Due to the number of children leaving care there were only
four children who completed the Year 2 tests after 1 year in
care. Of these, two were not entered for the tests, one
reached the expected levels in maths and English and one did
not.

2017-18 is the second year of the new curriculum and
assessment and so comparisons can only be made with 2016.
Although there was an increase in the percentage gaining the
expected standard in three of the four areas, (reading, writing,
grammar/punctuation/spelling and maths) the number
reaching this in reading, writing and maths has fallen, which is
disappointing for the pupils and their teachers as well as for
those in the Virtual School who have been supporting them.
Despite this headline, progress at individual pupil level was
above national rates and that for all Cheshire East children in
9 out of 11 areas when compared with children of similar SEN
levels. Strategies are already in place to improve outcomes in
2018-19, which include replacing agency tutors with and an
in-house teacher who will focus specifically on Year 6. These
include the purchase of tablets with pre-loaded Key Stage 2
(KS2) learning and revision materials which allow usage and
progress to be tracked and additional sessions for carers on

18

g¢ abed



how to raise aspirations and support children to prepare for
and complete the tests.

Under the new scoring and reporting system for GCSEs for
cared for children, 19% of children have gained Level 2 in
maths and English. This is an increase of 7% from 2016 and
is above the reported national figure for 2017, which was
17%. Additional tuition and support has been put in place to
support pupils taking exams in 2018 and full time education
places and independent special schools have been purchased
for pupils who were not able to maintain a place in
mainstream schools so that they can complete their education
and gain qualifications.

The Virtual School has provided updates and training for
schools so that they fully understand and implement their
duties, which will include supporting previously cared for
children from Sept 2018. Virtual School staff have worked with
schools and challenged when children have experienced
difficulties or were not making progress. Training has been
well received with further requests for bespoke training being
made and accommodated wherever possible. Additional front
line staff have been employed to mentor or provide additional
tuition for pupils and this has had a significant impact on
attendance and achievement for several dis-engaged pupils.

Ten primary schools have taken part in an attachment
research project which has had dramatic positive impact in

pupils feeling safe and secure and ready to learn. A training
video is being made to share the learning from the project and
we have been asked to present the findings at a national
conference in November.

A new ePEP is being developed on Liquid Logic which will
improve the ease of completion, security and efficiency of the
PEP (Personal Education Plan) process. A pilot has been in
place since Sept 2017 with about forty schools now using the
system and roll out to all planned by Aug 2019.

Forty-nine children moved schools within the school year
2016-17. Mainstream transfers were usually swift and well
managed although admission to some secondary schools,
particularly out of Cheshire East has been delayed with
schools pointing out barriers and difficulties before agreeing a
start date. The Virtual School has adopted a new policy to
fund a comprehensive integration plan, which involves the
school spending time getting to know the child when they start
to try and avoid later issues. So far this is proving very
successful. Additional front line staff, mentor and tutor have
been employed within the Virtual School and have been
deployed when children are between schools or not engaging
with their named school. This has proved successful in
maintaining a routine for the child and helping them to make
progress while not in regular lessons.

19

6€ abed



Transfers of children with SEN are more complex and are led
by the SEN team who have to identify an appropriate school
and then consult with them, which has a statutory time period.
To try and reduce the time out of education, the Virtual School
has worked with the SEN Team and implemented several new
processes which include:

e Cheshire East to retain and oversee EHCPs for all
children in residential care.

e Tutor to be provided while a child with an EHCP is
awaiting a school place.

¢ Identification of names SEN officer for out of LA cared
for children.

e Clear process for other LA’s when finding places for
Cheshire East children.

Attendance at school is closely monitored. Primary
attendance was above the national level in 2016/17 at 96%
and has increased to 97% in April 2018. Attendance at
secondary school fell slightly to 93% in 2017 but has risen to
95% in 2018. Checks are made monthly and concerns are
raised with schools, carers and social workers. A new joint
working group called RAIC (Raising Achievement in Care) has
been established and the focus of the first meeting was
improving attendance. As a result, the expectations of carers
to ensure good attendance will be made clear and strategies
of how to realise this will be shared.

Reducing exclusions remains a priority and in 2017 there was
a decrease in the overall number of sessions lost and the
number of children with one or more fixed term exclusion.
These trends have continued into 2018, despite an increase in
in the cared for population. Reasons for this are complex but
include:

¢ Investigation of all exclusions.

¢ Intervention and additional PEP for cases of repeat
exclusions.

e Supporting schools to find additional/alternative support
to avoid exclusions.

There has been a significant reduction in the percentage of
16+ who are NEET (not in education, employment or training)
For 16-18 year old cared leavers this has fallen from 32% in
May 2017 to 12% in May 2018. This is due to the actions
which have been jointly planned and delivered by all LA teams
working with this group of young people and co-ordinated by
the SPEED (Sixteen Plus Education and Employment
Destinations) group which include:

e Post-16 tutor employed to work with pupils not
engaged

e Cheshire East setting up in house engagement
programmes

e Commissioned support programme, Cygnet, to provide
supported work experience

20

of ebed



e NEET panel set up to consider ‘stuck’ cases and what
collaborative support can be given

e Closer working with local employers groups so that
they are aware of the needs of vulnerable young
people and know how to help them give of their best.

Two Cheshire East care leavers were recently commended at
an awards ceremony at South and West Cheshire College.
Despite setbacks in their education, and through the support
of our Virtual School, both of these young people have
exceeded in their field. One of these young people won
Health and Social Care student of the year for her hard work
and determination and is now moving onto University to study
mental health nursing. The other young person won the
English for Speakers of Other Languages (ESOL) student of
the year, having arrived in Cheshire East in December 2016
as an unaccompanied asylum seeker through the dispersal
programme.

Support me to move to adult life

e Increase the number of young people aged 18-21 who are
education, employment or training

e Prepare young people for independent living, to ensure young
people have suitable accommodation and are able to live
independently with limited support, and experience greater
stability

e Young people have the skills and knowledge them need and
can protect themselves from risk

National Implementation Adviser for Care Leavers

In January 2018 Cheshire East invited Mark Riddell, the
National Implementation Adviser for Care Leavers, to
feedback on our arrangements to support care leavers.
Feedback was provided by Mark on day two of the visit and
identified that the operational model provided by the care
leavers team was good and that the personal advisors were
committed to improving outcomes for care leavers. However,
he found that the ‘corporate test’ had not been met in
Cheshire East. Mark Riddell recommended that the Corporate
Parenting Committee reconsider the ways in which it is able to
directly influence the services that are delivered to care
leavers and that corporate parenting needs to become
embedded throughout the organisation. Officers have
listened to the feedback provided and this will be incorporated
into the new Corporate Parenting Strategy for 2018-20.

21

| ebed



Ignition

By working with all partners, we are able to provide choice for
young people and a process that provides them with a voice
and ownership of their accommodation and future plans.
Ignition is for young people aged 1572 plus who are thinking
about where and how they would like to live when they leave
care (we think the earlier we can plan the better the
experience!). This is an innovative approach and was short-
listed for two national awards in 2017-18. Social Care
commissioners from across the North West have taken the
time to come and observe Ignition in full flow and have all
commented on the fantastic approach that is delivering good
outcomes for our Care Leavers.

We now have a strong offer for our care leavers including
taster flats, supported independent living, supported lodgings
with ‘hosts’, dispersed properties with the offer of floating
support alongside Staying Put and Staying Close
arrangements, a group living house and support / acting as
guarantor for individual tenancies. All of this choice would not
have been possible without the successful partnerships that
have developed through Ignition.

Supported Lodgings

The re-commission of supported lodgings services is
complete and the contract from 1st April 2018 was awarded to
Forum Housing again. Their bid was good and built on the
service delivery to date that has developed well through

Forum Housing's attendance at the Ignition Panel and
listening to young people's views re their aspirations and
planning towards independence. The new service builds in the
ability for our more complex young people to possibly access
a supported lodging

Supporting Care Leavers as Parents

Motherwell is a charity for women run by women, promoting
positive health and wellbeing, by offering a range of
educational services, holistic therapies and mental health
support. The charity was recently successful in achieving a
funding bid to provide a Parent Advocate Worker to support
our care leaver parents. The Parent Advocate Worker will
provide support to mothers who have had their children
removed, to prevent the cycle taking place again via one to
one support, counselling and alternative therapies.

Research Project — this will be carried out by the Head of
Abuse Studies at MMU Crewe. This is a three year project
which will research the correlations in childhood experiences
of abuse and implications that this has on parenting. It is
hoped that this research will identity which interventions are
successful with families, and which are not. Additionally it will
also identify if there are any gaps in services.

Positive Parenting Groups — working with the children’s
centres, we held our first Positive Parenting Group in July
2017 at Oak Tree Children’s Centre in Crewe. 11 out of 20

22

Zi ebed



pregnant and parent female care leavers indicated they would
engage with the group. Going forward, the group will be split
into two models across the North and South of Cheshire East.

e North Locality Positive Parent Group - this will be an
informal peer support group with the plan to bring
services to the group, as and when identified by the
young people or identified by staff as a need, around
their parenting and health issues.

e South Locality Positive Parenting Group - one day a
month our south based care leaver mothers can access
the children’s centre and have their own group. On this
day they can also access health advice and support from
services already based within the centre.

Care Leaver Fathers

Research Project, Care Leaver Fathers - A research project
into male care leaver fathers and their experiences and
interactions with social care in relation to their own children is
currently underway. This research will give the fathers a voice
and the data will be used to identify any areas which the
fathers feel that support is lacking. Improvements can then be
implemented in the service via a training programme will be
given for Personal Assistants/Social Workers. We have had a
good response from fathers interested in taking part in the
research project.

Direct one to one support and group support for Care Leaver
Fathers via Dads Stuff - this has been assigned to all
Personal Advisors to refer.  Dads Stuff who can offer care
leaver fathers direct one to one support, and this includes
absent fathers who want to be involved in their child’s life.
They will support dads with their overall parenting and attend
meetings in support of dads. Our dads also have the option of
attending the Dads Stuff group, once they feel confident in
accessing the service, or before if they are happy to. The
current group in Sandbach is a busy group and this is being
extended across other areas in the authority.

Resource Folder — we have set up a resource folder covering
the following topics; advocacy, domestic abuse, emotional
and mental health, housing, identity, immigration,
independence and ready to live alone, LGBT, money and
budgeting, parenting, physical health, sexual health, sexual
exploitation, substance misuse and trafficking and slavery.

23

¢t abed



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 45 Agenda ltem 8

Cheshire E@,

Council %

FORWARD PLAN FOR THE PERIOD ENDING 31T DECEMBER 2018

This Plan sets out the key decisions which the Executive expects to take over the period
indicated above. The Plan is rolled forward every month. A key decision is defined in the
Council’'s Constitution as:

“an executive decision which is likely —

(a) toresultin the local authority incurring expenditure which is, or the making of
savings which are, significant having regard to the local authority’s budget for
the service or function to which the decision relates; or

(b)  to be significant in terms of its effects on communities living or working in an
area comprising one or more wards or electoral divisions in the area of the
local authority.

For the purpose of the above, savings or expenditure are “significant” if they are
equal to or greater than £1M.”

Reports relevant to key decisions, and any listed background documents, may be viewed
at any of the Council’s Offices/Information Centres 5 days before the decision is to be
made. Copies of, or extracts from, these documents may be obtained on the payment of a
reasonable fee from the following address:

Democratic Services Team

Cheshire East Council

c/o Westfields, Middlewich Road, Sandbach Cheshire CW11 1HZ
Telephone: 01270 686472

However, it is not possible to make available for viewing or to supply copies of reports or
documents the publication of which is restricted due to confidentiality of the information
contained.

A record of each key decision is published within 6 days of it having been made. This is
open for public inspection on the Council's Website, at Council Information Centres and at
Council Offices.

This Forward Plan also provides notice that the Cabinet, or a Portfolio Holder, may decide
to take a decision in private, that is, with the public and press excluded from the meeting.
In accordance with the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access
to Information) (England) Regulations 2012, 28 clear days’ notice must be given of any
decision to be taken in private by the Cabinet or a Portfolio Holder, with provision for the
public to make representations as to why the decision should be taken in public. In such
cases, Members of the Council and the public may make representations in writing to the
Democratic Services Team Manager using the contact details below. A further notice of
intention to hold the meeting in private must then be published 5 clear days before the



Page 46

meeting, setting out any representations received about why the meeting should be held in
public, together with a response from the Leader and the Cabinet.

The list of decisions in this Forward Plan indicates whether a decision is to be taken in
private, with the reason category for the decision being taken in private being drawn from
the list overleaf:

1. Information relating to an individual

2. Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual

3. Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person
(including to authority holding that information)

4. Information relating to any consultations or negotiations, or contemplated
consultations or negotiations, in connection with any labour relations matter arising
between the authority or a Minister of the Crown and employees of, or office
holders under the authority

5. Information in respect of which a claim to legal and professional privilege could be
maintained in legal proceedings

6. Information which reveals that the authority proposes (a) to give under any
enactment a notice under or by virtue of which requirements are imposed on a
person; or (b) to make an order or direction under any enactment

7. Information relating to any action taken or to be taken in connection with the
prevention, investigation of prosecution of crime

If you would like to make representations about any decision to be conducted in private at
a meeting, please email:

Paul Mountford, Executive Democratic Services Officer
paul.mountford@cheshireeast.gov.uk

Such representations must be received at least 10 clear working days before the date of
the Cabinet or Portfolio Holder meeting concerned.

Where it has not been possible to meet the 28 clear day rule for publication of notice of a
key decision or intention to meet in private, the relevant notices will be published as soon
as possible in accordance with the requirements of the Constitution.

The law and the Council's Constitution provide for urgent key decisions to be made. Any
decision made in this way will be published in the same way.


mailto:paul.mountford@cheshireeast.gov.uk

Forward Plan

Cheshire E@J

oA
Council#

Key Decision Decisions to be Taken Decision Maker Expected Proposed How to make Private/
and Date of Consultation representation | Confidential
Private Decision to the decision and

Non-Key made paragraph
Decision number

CE 17/18-62 To delegate authority to Portfolio Holder for | August 2018 Ralph Kemp N/A

Route and Rota | the Executive Director Environment

Optimisation Place, in consultation with

the Portfolio Holder for
Environment and the
Director of Legal Services,
to develop and implement
the route and rota
optimisation proposals
through Ansa
Environmental Services
Ltd.

L ebed




Key Decision Decisions to be Decision Maker Expected Proposed How to make Private/
Taken Date of Consultation representation | Confidential
Decision to the decision and
made paragraph

number

CE 18/19-7 To seek approval for an Portfolio Holder for | Not before Each of the Plans | Adrian Fisher, N/A

Local update to the Local Housing, Planning | 31st Aug 2018 | listed in the Local | Head of Planning

Development Development Scheme, a | gand Regeneration Development and Policy

Scheme formal document setting Scheme will be

out the plans which the
Council will use in pursuit
of its planning functions.
The Local Development
Scheme is a public
document.

As well as updating
existing plans, the Local
Development Scheme will
formally signal that the
Council will prepare an
Area Action Plan for
Crewe Hub Station and
environs.

subject to informal
and formal
consultation, plus
independent
Examination.

Qfy abed



Key Decision Decisions to be Decision Maker Expected Proposed How to make Private/
Taken Date of Consultation representation | Confidential
Decision to the decision and
made paragraph
number

CE 18/19-8 To seek agreement to Portfolio Holder for | Not before The draft Adrian Fisher, N/A
Statement of publish a revised Housing, Planning | 31st Aug 2018 | Statement of Head of Planning
Community Statement of Community | and Regeneration Community and Policy

Involvement Involvement for 6 weeks’ Involvement will be

public consultation. The
Statement will set out how
the Council will involve and
engage with the public and
partners in pursuit of its
planning functions. The
Statement covers both
planning applications and
planning policy.

subject to six
weeks consultation
to run concurrently
with the
consultation on the
second stage of the
Local Plan — the
Site Allocations &
Development
Policies Document.
Following this, all
comments will be
considered and
revisions made as
appropriate before
a final version of
the Statement of
Community
Involvement is
prepared for
approval.

61 ebed



Key Decision Decisions to be Decision Maker Expected Proposed How to make Private/
Taken Date of Consultation representation | Confidential
Decision to the decision and
made paragraph
number
CE 18/19-9 Site | To seek agreement to Portfolio Holder for | Not before Approval is being Jeremy Owens N/A

Allocations and
Development
Policies
Document

publish a first draft of the
Cheshire East Site
Allocations and
Development Policies
Document together with its
supporting evidence for 6
weeks’ public consultation.

Housing, Planning
and Regeneration

31st Aug 2018

sought to carry out
public consultation,
building on the
significant
consultation and
engagement that
has already taken
place in developing
the draft Site
Aallocations and
Development
Policies Document.

0G abed



Key Decision Decisions to be Decision Maker Expected Proposed How to make Private/
Taken Date of Consultation representation | Confidential
Decision to the decision and
made paragraph
number
CE 18/19 -12 To seek agreement to Portfolio Holder for | Not before The draft Adrian Fisher, N/A
North Cheshire | publish a Draft Housing, Planning | 31st Aug 2018 | Supplementary Head of Planning

Growth Village

Supplementary Planning
Document for North
Cheshire Growth Village
(known as The Garden
Village at Handforth) and
to undertake public
consultation.

and Regeneration

Planning Document
will be subject to
six weeks
consultation to run
concurrently with
the consultation on
the second stage of
the Local Plan —
the Site Allocations
& Development
Policies Document.
Following this, all
comments will be
considered and
revisions made as
appropriate before
a final version of
the Supplementary
Planning Document
is prepared for
approval.

and Policy

|G ebed



Key Decision Decisions to be Decision Maker Expected Proposed How to make Private/
Taken Date of Consultation representation | Confidential
Decision to the decision and
made paragraph
number
CE 18/19-13 To authorise officers to Portfolio Holder for | September Ralph Kemp N/A
Supply of take all necessary actions | Environment 2018
household to implement the proposal
recycling and to charge for the supply of
waste bins new and replacement
household waste and
recycling bins and
containers, following
consultation as part of the
MTFS, acceptance at
February Council and
borough-wide consultation.
CE 18/19-6 Re- | Cabinet to approve the re- | Cabinet 11 Sep 2018 Mark Bayley N/A

Procurement of
Contracts for
Fresh Produce
and Multi-
temperature
Food (Frozen
and Grocery
Products)

tendering process to
award these contracts. A
robust EU tender
Procedure will be
undertaken and the
successful provider
identified for each lot.

Z2G abed



Key Decision Decisions to be Decision Maker Expected Proposed How to make Private/
Taken Date of Consultation representation | Confidential
Decision to the decision and
made paragraph
number
CE 18/19-14 To support the sub Cabinet 11 Sep 2018 Sonia Bassey N/A
European Social regior)al lproposal for a bid
Fund Sub submls_3|on to the _
Regional Bid for Cheshire and.Warrlngton
Intensive Local Enterprise
Partnership via a direct call
Supported under Lots 1.2 and 1.4 in
Employment line with the proposed
Provision timeline outlined in the
report and authorise
officers to take all
necessary actions to
implement the proposal.
CE 18/19-10 Cabinet will be asked to Cabinet 9 Oct 2018 Mark Wheelton N/A
Everybody Sport | note the Leisure Trust
Performance and to approve the
Report 2017/18 exFenS|on of tht_e current
. Leisure Operating
and Le!sure Agreement with Everybody
Operating Sport and Recreation for a
Agreement - further five years to allow
Proposed the Trust to continue to
Extension improve the delivery of the

Council’s leisure services
and outcomes in terms of
health and wellbeing for
local residents.

£G abed



Key Decision

Decisions to be
Taken

Decision Maker

Expected
Date of
Decision

Proposed
Consultation

How to make
representation
to the decision

made

Private/
Confidential
and
paragraph
number

CE 18/19-16
Crewe HS2 Hub
Station and Hub
Station Area

To authorise officers to
progress project
development of an
enhanced Crewe hub
station and to take all
necessary actions to
prepare and submit all
necessary planning
applications. To authorise
the preparation and
submission of listed
building application and
the making of a
compulsory purchase
order to acquire the
necessary land and
interests to deliver the
Crewe Hub. To authorise
officers to take all
necessary actions to
develop and adopt an Area
Action Plan for the Crewe
Hub Station area.

Cabinet

6 Nov 2018

N/A

CE 18/19-17
Approval to
Commission
Universal
Information and
Advice Service

This is a contract for
providing impartial
information and advice
services. The current
contract expires on 31st
March 2019. Authority will
be sought to commission a
new service with effect
from 15t April 2019.

Cabinet

6 Nov 2018

Liz Rimmer

N/A

G abed



Key Decision Decisions to be Decision Maker Expected Proposed How to make Private/
Taken Date of Consultation representation | Confidential
Decision to the decision and
made paragraph
number
CE 18/19-1 To approve a proposed Cabinet 4 Dec 2018 Jacky Forster N/A
Havannah change in age range from
Primary School - i4r';11;:>1letr(r)1:r-1:a1tif)onr in October
ggﬁgge in Age 2018, having given due
consideration to the
response to the statutory
proposal notice.
CE 18/19-15 To seek approval from Cabinet 4 Dec 2018 Lucy Cooper N/A
Mental Health Cabinet for the adoption of
Strategy the Cheshire East Mental
Health Strategy.
CE 18/19-11 To seek agreement to Council 13 Dec 2018 Adrian Fisher,
Adoption of adopt the Community Head of Planning
Community Infrast_ructure Levy (CIL) and Policy
Infrastructure Charging Schedule
Levy following public
examination on 12/13
September 2018.
CE 17/18-51 To approve the Medium Council 21 Feb 2019 Alex Thompson N/A
Medium Term Term Financial Strategy
Financial for 2019-2022,
Strategy 2019- incorporating the Council’s
2022 priorities, budget, policy

proposals and capital
programme.

GG ebed



This page is intentionally left blank



PPy

\
50

Page 57 Adgenda |

Cheshire East )V
Council?

=

Children and Families Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Date of Meeting: 24 September 2018
Report Title: Work Programme
Portfolio Holder: ClIr Jos Saunders

Senior Officer: Acting Director of Legal Services

1. Report Summary

1.1. To review items in the Work Programme listed in the schedule attached,
together with any other items suggested by Committee Members.

2. Recommendation
2.1. That the work programme be reviewed.

2.2. That a Task and Finish Group be established to review the SEND local
offer for 16-25 years olds

3. Reasons for Recommendation

3.1 It is good practice to review the work programme and update accordingly

3.2  The Children and Families Act 2014 extended the SEND system from birth
to 25 Years, which will support young people into further education,
employment and independent living. The recent SEND Task and Finish
Group had concerns that post 16, young people are not able to access the
jobs market due to other social issues, for those that are unable to work,
and there is also a lack of social care. As this was a new requirement of the
Council, there were significant improvements to be made. The Task and
Finish Group agreed this area should be reviewed at a later date. The
Committee is now requested to establish an a further Task and Finish
Group to investigate this matter.

4. Other Options Considered
4.1. There are no further options to consider.

5. Background

OFFICIAL



Page 58

5.1 The schedule attached has been updated following the last meeting of the
committee.

5.2 Members are asked to review the schedule attached to this report, and if
appropriate, add new items or delete items that no longer require any scrutiny
activity. When selecting potential topics, Members should have regard to the
Council’'s new three year plan and also to the general criteria listed below, which
should be applied to all potential items when considering whether any Scrutiny
activity is appropriate.

5.3 The following questions should be asked in respect of each potential work
programme item:

e Does the issue fall within a corporate priority;
¢ |Is the issue of key interest to the public;

e Does the matter relate to a poor or declining performing service for
which there is no obvious explanation;

e |s there a pattern of budgetary overspends;

e Is it a matter raised by external audit management letters and or
audit reports?

¢ |s there a high level of dissatisfaction with the service;

5.4 If during the assessment process any of the following emerge, then the
topic should be rejected:

e The topic is already being addressed elsewhere
e The matter is subjudice

e Scrutiny cannot add value or is unlikely to be able to conclude an
investigation within the specified timescale

6. Implications
6.1. Legal Implications
6.1.1. There are no legal implications at this stage.
6.2. Finance Implications
6.2.1. There are no financial implications at this stage

6.3. Equality Implications

OFFICIAL
2



Page 59

6.3.1. There are no equalities implications at this stage.
6.4. Human Resources Implications
6.4.1. There are no human resources implications at this stage.
6.5. Risk Management Implications
6.5.1. There are no risk management implications at this stage.
6.6. Rural Communities Implications
6.6.1. There are no implications for rural communities.
6.7. Implications for Children & Young People
6.7.1. There and no implications for children and young people at this stage.
6.8. Public Health Implications
6.8.1. There are no direct implications for public health.
. Ward Members Affected
7.1. Al
. Access to Information
8.1. The background papers can be inspected by contacting the report author
. Contact Information

9.1. Any questions relating to this report should be directed to the following
officer:

Name: Katie Small
Job Title: Scrutiny Officer

Email: Katie.small@cheshireeast.gov.uk

OFFICIAL
3



This page is intentionally left blank



Children and Families Overview and Scrutiny Committee — September 2018

Date: 24 Date: 26 Date: 10 Date: 28 Date: 23
September November December January 2019 | March 2019
2018 2018 2018 Time:2.00pm Time:2.00pm
Time:2.00pm | Time:2.00pm Venue; Venue:
Venue: Venue: Time:9.30am | Committee Committee
Committee Committee Venue: suite, suite,
suite, suite, Committee Westfields Westfields
Westfields Westfields suite,
Westfields
Essential items
ltem Description/purpose of Outcome Lead Officer/ Suggested by Current position Key Dates/
report/comments organisation/ Deadlines
Portfolio
Holder
Serious case To receive a presentation People live Director Director Presentation 24 September ¢
reviews — PART 2 well and for 2018
ITEM X
longer (e
Emotional Health To scrutinise tier 3 and 4 of the People live Executive The Spot light review 24 September
and Wellbeing - service. partners to be invited and | well and for Director Committee 2018
CAMHS answer a series of questions to longer People Further information
include bed waits for those with Children and required
eating disorders Families
Additional information required in ﬁo:;fo"o
due course: olaer
o Update on Emotionally Dr Matthew
Healthy Schools. Howard
o Statistics on referrals to
A&E
o Success of Out of Hours
Service




Children and Families Overview and Scrutiny Committee — September 2018

o bed waits for those with
eating disorders

To review the annual report for

A responsible

Committee Report

Corporate 2017/18 effective and | Executive Committee 24 September
Parenting Annual e Review Outcomes efficient Director Annual Report 2018
Report o Review Revised Strategy | organisation. | People
People live Children and
well and for Families
longer Portfolio
Holder
Formal Review of To give consideration to the review | A responsible | Executive Director Committee Report | 24 September
Regional Adoption effective and | Director 2018
Agency and Annual efficient People
Adoption Report — organisation. Ry
Part 2 report People live %
well and for »
longer N
LSCB Annual To review the annual report for A responsible | Executive Committee Committee Report | 26 November
Report 2017/18 effective and | Director Annual report 2018
efficient People
organisation. | Children and
People live Families
well and for Portfolio
longer Holder
Response to the To receive the cabinet response to | People have Executive Portfolio Committee report | 26 November
SEND Task and the send task and finish group the life skills Director Holder 2018
Finish Group report and an update on the action | gng education | People
Report and update | plan following the recent OFSTED they need in Children and
Oglztg?région plan inspection order to thrive | Families
I(nspection) Portfolio

Holder




Children and Families Overview and Scrutiny Committee — September 2018

LADO annual report | To review the annual report for A responsible | Executive Committee Committee Report | 26 November
2017/18 effective and Director Annual report 2018
efficient People
organisation. | Children and
People live Families
well and for Portfolio
longer Holder
Performance Quarterly performance reports A responsible | Executive Ofsted Quarterly
Monitoring — C&F effective and | Director performance report | 26 November
Scorecard efficient People 2018
organisation Children and
Families
Portfolio
Holder
Deep Dive Report: | To receive a report on the deep *People live Committee Committee Report | 10 December |
Integrated Front dive of Integrated Front Door - well and for report 2018 %
Door - Cheshire Cheshire East Consultation longer o))
East Consultation Service (ChECS) W
Service (ChECS)
Budget To scrutinise the areas of the A responsible | Executive Committee Committee report | 10 December
budget which fall within the remit effective and Director 2018
of the Committee efficient People
organisation Children and
Families
Portfolio
Holder
Redesign of early To receive an update on the People have Director of The Progress report 28 January 2019
help and prevention | service redesign the life skills Children’s Committee
services. and education | Prevention
they need in and Support.

order to thrive

Children and




Children and Families Overview and Scrutiny Committee — September 2018

Families
Portfolio
Holder
Performance Quarterly performance reports A responsible | Executive Ofsted Quarterly
Monitoring — C&F effective and | Director performance report | 28 January 2019
Scorecard efficient People
organisation Children and
Families
Portfolio
Holder
Sustainable Modes | To receive an update People live Children and | Director Oral update
of Transport well and for Families 28 January 2019
Strategy longer Portfolio -
Holder \))
Update on To receive a report in relation to People live Executive Committee Committee Report | 28 January 2019 ‘i
residential provision | residential homes well and for Director
longer People
Children and
Families
Portfolio
Holder
Annual Education To review the annual report for People have Executive Annual report | Committee Report | 23 March 2019
Report and future 2016/17- to include an update on | the life skills Director
proofing of rural SSIF and receive an update on and education | People ,
schools future proofing of rural schools. they need in Children and
order to thrive | Families
Portfolio
Holder
Performance Quarterly performance reports A responsible | Executive Ofsted Quarterly
Monitoring — C&F effective and | Director performance report | 23 March 2019

Scorecard




Children and Families Overview and Scrutiny Committee — September 2018

efficient People

organisation Children and
Families
Portfolio
Holder

Task ands Finish Groups

Task and Finish Group be established to investigate the local offer for 16-25 year olds

Briefing Notes

Supported childcare for 2/3 year olds

Multi Academy Trusts MATS - Update, including role of Cheshire East Council and how work together with partners and
acadamisation of schools

ILACS Update
DCS Assurance
Reprocurement of food contracts

G9 abed

Possible Future/ desirable items

Domestic Abuse Commission— update on impact of new provision
FACT 22 Update — May 2019
children not accessing full time education — spot light review



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 67 Agenda Iltem 12

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 75 Adgenda Iltem 13

By virtue of paragraph(s) 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 91 Adgenda Iltem 14

By virtue of paragraph(s) 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	2 Minutes of Previous meeting
	Minutes

	6 Update on CAMHs
	7 Corporate Parenting Annual Report 2017 - 2018
	8 Forward Plan
	9 Work Programme
	CF updated work programme

	12 Impact of the Regional Adoption Agency
	13 Cheshire East Adoption Panel Chair Report
	14 Cheshire East Annual Adoption Service Report 2017/18

